From:

To: M5 Junction 10 Highways Improvements Scheme

Cc:

Subject: M5 Junction 10 - Secretary of State Consultation Letter 1 - dated 21 March 2025
Date: 01 April 2025 08:41:08

Attachments: Final DfT Consultation Letter 01 -M5 J10 .pdf

You don't often get email from_@defra,gov,uk. Learn why this is important
Dear Sir/Madam

Please find below Defra’s position on the Defra DCO Crown consent (Junction 10 of the
M5) item in response to your email dated 21t March 2025 which contained the following
request.

The land required by Gloucestershire County Council (‘GCC?’) for the Junction 10 M5
scheme does not include Crown land in which Defra has an interest in it. GCC, therefore
would not be able to rely on section 135 Planning Act 2008 to include provisions in its DCO
which authorise the compulsory acquisition of an interest in Crown land where that
interest is held by a party other than the Crown. As the land is not Crown land, there is no
basis upon which Defra could provide a letter of consent authorising the acquisition of
such an interest.

A copy of the relevant title of the land which GCC seek to compulsory acquire shows that
the Secretary of State has no ownership in the land nor are there any rights or covenants in
favour of the Secretary of State.

There is a land charge, as GCC states, over the land in question for the Redemption of Tithe
Rent and this was imposed by order of the Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries (‘MAF’), the
predecessor of the Secretary of State for Environment Food and Rural Affairs. But this does
not amount to a “Crown Interest” for two main reasons:

1. Although the charge was imposed by an order of MAF, MAF was not the beneficiary
of the rentcharge, the registered proprietor of the charge is the Church
Commissioners For England. It is they who therefore have the interest in the
charge, not the Crown.

2. Redemption of Tithe Rentcharges is a historic form of charge which have now been
extinguished, and therefore the landowner should be able to make an application
to the Land Registry to cancel the charges over the title.

GCC is the registered owner of the land, who are also the party asking the Secretary of
State to consent to the DCO. It would therefore seem that it is open to GCC to apply to the
Land Registry to remove the charge so that they have a clean title, but it is not for the
Secretary of State to give the consent due to this not being Crown land for the purposes of
them wanting to include compulsory purchase provisions in the DCO as provided under
Planning Act 2008.

The above was confirmed to Cater Jonas / Burges Salmon 11 Mar / 12 Mar 2025
respectively.
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To: 21 March 2025
The Applicant

The Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local

Government

The Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

Crown Estate Commissioners

Dear Sir/Madam

Planning Act 2008 and the Infrastructure Planning (Examination Procedure) Rules
2010

Application by Gloucestershire County Council (“the Applicant”) seeking
Development Consent for the proposed M5 Junction 10 Improvements Scheme

Request for comments from the Applicant and the parties listed above

NOISE AND VIBRATION

1. The Secretary of State notes that there are no mitigation measures secured by the draft
Development Consent Order for the significant adverse noise effects to receptors on Stoke
Road as a result of the Proposed Development and that the Applicant’'s Environmental
Statement confirms that mitigation is being investigated by Gloucestershire County Council
as a separate scheme, the ‘Stoke Orchard Scheme traffic calming’. It is further noted that
construction of this scheme was expected to start in March - April 2025.

2. The Secretary of State requests an update from the Applicant or relevant department
within Gloucestershire County Council on the current status of this scheme, and its
expected completion.

CROWN LAND

3. The Secretary of State is aware that by the close of the Examination, Crown consent had
not been obtained by the Applicant for the compulsory acquisition of interests in land from
the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government, Department for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs and the Crown Estate respectively.
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The Secretary of State therefore requé&StE-ahtiidat¥from the Applicant, the Secretary of
State for Housing, Communities and Local Government, the Secretary of State for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and the Crown Estate Commissioners regarding
whether an agreement for this land has been reached, or if not, when agreement might be
reached.

Noting that section 135 of the Planning Act 2008 requires consent of the appropriate Crown

authority before development consent could be granted, the Secretary of State also invites
the Applicant to set out what the appropriate options are if consent is not provided.

Deadline for Response

The deadline for response is 4 April 2025.

Submissions sent by post may be subject to delay therefore your response on the
information requested above should be submitted to the Case Team, if possible, by email to
m5junction10@planninginspectorate.gov.uk.

If you will have difficulty in submitting a response by the deadline, or difficulty in submitting
a response by email, please inform the Case Team.

Responses will be published as soon as possible after the deadline on the project page of
the National Infrastructure Planning website at: M5 Junction 10 Improvements Scheme -
Project information.

This letter is without prejudice to the Secretary of State’s decision on the Application, and
nothing in this letter is to be taken to imply what that decision might be.

Yours faithfully,

Transport Infrastructure Planning Unit
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Kind Regards

_I Head of Water Infrastructure Planning & Delivery Unit

Water Sector Delivery | Floods & Water Directorate | Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

_@defra.gov.uk |_| Lancaster House, Hampshire Court,

Newcastle, Tyne & Wear, NE4 7YH

This message has been sent using TLS 1.2

Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) This email and any attachments is
intended for the named recipient only. If you have received it in error you have no authority to
use, disclose, store or copy any of its contents and you should destroy it and inform the sender.
Whilst this email and associated attachments will have been checked for known viruses whilst
within Defra systems we can accept no responsibility once it has left our systems.
Communications on Defra's computer systems may be monitored and/or recorded to secure the
effective operation of the system and for other lawful purposes.





